
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, September 1st, 2015.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member




Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning
*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because of the scheduled vacations, we don’t have minutes to approve this evening.  We will approve them at our next meeting in October.



*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there is at least one change to our agenda.  The applicant Mongoose Inc. for the Abee Rose application has asked to be adjourned to next month.  If there’s anybody here we’ll certainly allow you to speak at the appropriate time but the applicant will not be here tonight.


*



*



*
RESOLUTION:

PB 1-11      a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 27 lot cluster major subdivision of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road, as shown on a drawing entitled “Hanover Estates – Alt. D3” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. latest revision dated August 10, 2015.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a Resolution for that particular…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 13-15 approving the application subject to the 20 conditions in the Resolution.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, I believe, it’s been a while since we’ve done – you should adopt the Resolution and also adopt the Finding Statement simultaneously.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I’d like to amend my motion to also include the adoption of the Finding Statement.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re done.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated thank you very much.  We really appreciate the board’s efforts and work on this project.



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 17-06    a.
An Undated Letter, received by the Planning Division on July 21, 2015 from Rory Eblen and a drawing prepared by Nelson & Pope Engineers & Surveyors dated July 2015, requesting Planning Board approval for a proposed solid-oxide fuel cell (clean energy generator) installation at Home Depot.

Ms. Amy Shanahan stated good evening Planning Board.  If you recall, this item was on the agenda last month as well.  The proposed project involves installation of a Bloom Energy fuel cell energy server at the Home Depot.  My name is Amy Shanahan I am with Bloom Energy.  We manufacture and install fuel cells.  I provided a little bit of an overview of who we are and what fuel cells are at the last hearing and I’ll go through that very quickly again for you just to refresh your memories a little bit and then we’ll get into the more substantive items relating to this specific proposed project.  Fuel cells are a distributed-generation technology similar to solar so we install the fuel cells on site and they produce energy on site to the building.  Distributed generation attempts to solve the energy problem of centralized generation which is, as we all know, power plants like this coal-fired power plant are expensive and unreliable and emit lots of pollutants right, so in this area, again as we all know, the infrastructure we have is aging, it is unreliable and it’s getting worse and worse and electricity prices are increasing.  So, this technology attempts to solve those problems.  It’s very similar to other types of technologies that have moved to more of a distributed type of format so computing and telecom.  We used to have centralized computers and telephony.  We’ve now gone to having laptops and cell phones, etc.  So, everything’s distributed; you use it right where you need it kind of thing.  It’s the same thing with energy.  We’re just producing energy right where it’s used on site.  One fuel cell looks like this photo you see on your left.  The fuel cells that we produce are a solid-oxide fuel cell so it’s essentially just sand that’s compressed into kind of a wafer, like a tile.  It’s about this big.  There’s an anode and a cathode on each side.  We stack those up into stacks.  I’m not very creative, obviously an engineer named that but we call them stacks; that produces one kilowatt of energy.  One fuel cell will produce 25 watts which is about enough to just power one light bulb.  We then stack those into modules and that creates a system which is really flexible and modular and we size it to the needs of the building that we’re installing them at.  In this case, this is a 200 kw system which has 6 power modules.  I’ll show you a little bit better photos in a moment here so you can see exactly what it’s going to look like.  Here are a few examples of projects that we’ve completed.  I believe I showed these at the last hearing but there’s the Nokia project which is in Sunnyville; the top left here, that one’s on a roof right next to the employee lunch area; the Nokia Headquarters.  We’ve completed a lot of projects for companies like AT&T, data centers; 10 megawatt, Apple Data Center and our largest project was for Delmarva Power which is a 30 megawatt installation in Delaware.  The fuel cells are secure.  They’re reliable and they also produce much less emissions compared to the grid.  These are a little bit of comparisons for you.  The greenhouse gas emissions from the fuel cells are less than 50% compared to the average of the U.S. national grid.  So, much lower emissions in terms of CO2 and the big difference is because fuel cells don’t utilize combustion whatsoever to produce electricity, there’s almost no particulate matter, or those kinds of pollutants that come from typical sources of combustion, so a real advantage there.  One of the other major advantages which is why Home Depot and other customers of ours choose to install fuel cells is it allows predictable electricity cost over time.  It’s a sustainable way to accurately predict your cost because you know what the fuel cells are going to produce.  What you don’t know is how much electricity is going to increase over your electricity costs are going to increase over the next 20 years but we have a contract with Home Depot that says you’re going to pay X amount per kilowatt/hour for the next 20 years.  That’s the real advantage for companies that want to accurately predict their costs.  In addition to that, they’re very, very reliable.  I mentioned the 30 megawatt project that we have for Delmarva.  There was a portion of that, a 3 megawatt installation that rode through Katrina when that occurred; no problem.  The fuel cells are extremely reliable in terms of events like earthquakes.  We had an installation in Napa several months ago and there was a large earthquake there that rode through that earthquake no problem and so that’s a real advantage to this technology as well.  I mentioned the sustainability impact, the decrease in CO2 emissions compared to the grid.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what are the CO2 emissions that it has?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the average coal-fired power plant and sorry it’s a little bit far away from me, is over three times as much CO2 emissions compared to the Bloom fuel cell.  It’s less than a third of what the average is in the U.S.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what are the CO2 emissions from the fuel cell?  Where are they coming from?  I thought…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the system does emit some CO2 and again, it’s not as a result of combustion, it’s the result of the electro-chemical reaction that takes place within the fuel cells.  What the fuel cells do is convert natural gas to electricity in a very direct manner.  There’s some emissions released as a result of that reaction.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked have you guys done any calculations not based on national averages but based on the current usage?  We’re not using coal-fired power plants here.  There’s a nice mix including some of the hydro-electric up north as well as Indian Point.  I’d love to hear if it’s relevant to us and I assume you’re telling us because it’s relevant, what it really means for us.

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, we actually have a lot of data around that.  As you can imagine a lot of our customers are interested in that as well.  I’d be happy to provide that after the meeting.  It’s not part of this specific presentation but I do have additional data for just the east coast grid that I could share with you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mentioned the Delmarva facility, is that on the peninsula?  How is this equipped and protected from flooding or tidal surges?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded we do place the systems outside of the regular flood area but what we found during Katrina is that even though the fuel cells did take on some water, they’re perfectly fine and continue running even in an event like that.  The fuel cells are placed on a 10-inch precast concrete pad and secured to that pad so they’re slightly elevated above the ground as well.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked if the fuel cells fail I assume there’s a transfer switch that goes to provide grid coverage?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded if the fuel cells for whatever reason shut off and that may happen for a variety of different reasons: there could be an unusual spike or decrease in the natural gas pressure for example, but if any unusual occurrence happens, the fuel cells monitor themselves as sort of their first line of defense and they’ll automatically go by go in standby mode.  If there’s a grid outage they will go into standby mode as well for this particular project so they do that.  In addition, we monitor them ourselves 24/7, 365 and can put them in standby mode or shut them down if we need to for any reason. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would there ever be an instance where they might just explode for some reason?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded no, we’ve never – that’s not a concern.  The fuel cells: they don’t store hazardous materials of any kind and there’s no ignition source because there’s no combustion happening…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was thinking because of lightning because they are located outside of a building, they’re not enclosed in a building or anything.

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded we’ve never had an occurrence like that and it’s not a concern under any kind of normal operating conditions or even in a hurricane.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked but just to be clear, for security purposes, this is run by natural gas?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded it is.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so why don’t you tell us about what you plan for this particular site to keep that stack secure so that people don’t go near something that’s running on natural gas where obviously there’s some risk if someone did something.

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded if we could progress the slide a little bit, I think that a photo may really help illustrate this.  This is a photo of what the fuel cells look like.  You’re seeing 6 power modules side-by-side; that’s one fuel cell.  The fuel cells are locked so they have secure doors on all sides that can only be opened if you have a special key which our maintenance folks have.  They’re completely secure and shut and they’re not accessible to the public in any way.  Again, as I mentioned earlier the fuel cells sort of monitor themselves for security and automatically go in standby mode if they’re tampered with or if there’s some incident like that happens.  We also monitor them all day at our main headquarters in Sunnyville.  Our backup facility is in India.  They monitor those.  There’s somebody on a screen observing the fuel cells and monitoring various parameters like gas pressure and temperature, etc.  If there’s any unusual occurrence that happens they would also put the fuel cells in standby mode and we would send someone out to go investigate.  We have a maintenance crew that can access the site within a couple of hours.  The intent is that the fuel cells are very, very secure, they’re locked, they’re not accessible to anyone in the public who could walk by and possibly tamper with them.
Mr. Robert Foley asked are there warning signs like fencing, explaining the…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, what you can’t see in this photo are the gas meter and the interconnection to the electrical and they’re all the warning signs that you would normally see, say, like a generator and those types of similar installations.  There are warning signs.  There’s also a manual EPO shutoff, Emergency Power Off on site.  So, if for whatever reasons someone needed to shut down the fuel cells manually such as the store manager or the fire department, that’s really clearly labeled and we do a training with the fire department and then store managers and any other first responders before we fire up the system.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and the natural gas in this particular site is already available?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded it’s already available.  We use the same natural gas that you use in your home if you have a gas range or something like.  It’s at the same pressure.  We use 15 psi.  It’s low-pressure.  It’s exactly what feeds the homes and businesses in the area currently.  We just tie into that existing gas line and utilize the natural gas that way.  Again, we don’t store any natural gas at all so it’s just piped in right from the pipeline.  The system is UL listed for fuel cell safety so that’s the gold standard for fuel cell safety and we are UL listed.  I mentioned the low pressure operation.  We’re limited to 15 psi.  There’s no combustion, no ignition source again.  We operate at a fairly low voltage limited to 480.  The system is air-cooled so there’s no liquid cooling fluid or anything like that; there are air intakes on the sides of the fuel cells that cool the system.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what kind of heat does it generate?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the fuel cells generate a small amount of waste heat from the top of the fuel cell and that’s just waste from the electro-chemical reaction that can’t be recycled in that process.  It’s about like a hair dryer or so, vented out the top of the fuel cell, similar temperature.  It’s constant, it vents out the top and it’s about the heat of a hair dryer if you’re familiar with that.  In terms of air quality, the emissions are very, very low.  We source test our fuel cells and comply with the California Air Resources Board Standards for distributed generation.  They set emissions criteria for fuel cells and we are well below what those emissions standards are.  We’re certified to CARB.  These are just some examples of our customers where we’ve installed fuel cells in the past to date we’ve deployed over 116 megawatts throughout the U.S. and Japan.  Our northeast region and this area, we’ve installed 8 projects in the State of New York alone.  Here’s just some photos of some completed projects that we’ve done.  I’ve got a few photos of our New York sites, so let’s keep going.  New York City Hall: this installation went in a few years ago.  It’s a historic site and one of our most interesting and unique installations, as you can imagine.  This is a Comcast site in Berlin, Connecticut.  You can see the fuel cells are made to withstand extreme temperatures, including snow.  This is a Home Depot.  This is a typical Home Depot.  The proposed project in front of you is one of a very large portfolio we’re installing for Home Depot throughout the east coast and west coast right now.  This is just an example of what a typical Home Depot project looks like when complete.  This is Stop & Shop in Peekskill, a project which is the closest one to the proposed project, this area.  The project will look, when complete, very similar to this.  We install bollards around the system as an added safety measure and that will be the same with our proposed project.  It’ll look almost just like that.  Here’s another photo from the other side of the Stop & Shop, Peekskill.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at our work session on Thursday, there was some discussion about using just bollards.  I believe our staff thinks that you should also…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated both myself and our fire inspector have reviewed the plans and we both have recommended putting up fencing, a secure fencing behind the Home Depot.  That was on both our comment letters.  I would suggest revising the site plan to show the bollard combinations along with a solid fence of any type.  Just provide us the detail and then we would review it and get back to you with any comments. 
Ms. Amy Shanahan responded okay.  This is just a map of where the projects we’ve completed in New York to date are located.  There are two in Long Island and two in Westchester County.  Again, there’s the Ahold Peekskill project and then Morgan Stanley in Purchase which was installed last year.  I’ll just briefly go through an overview of our construction process.  We mobilize and do our layouts and underground utility locator so that we know where any underground utilities may be.  We do some trenching and, we may not need this for this project, but normally we’d install our bollard footings right away and install our conduits for electrical.  That’s phase I.  After the trenching is complete we’ll backfill that and then pour the footings for the bollards.  We use precast concrete pads so this is a pad that’s specially made for the fuel cells.  We lay in the pads, which is the photo you see on the right there.  Phase III is we install the equipment and the utility meter and commission the system.  We’re in-and-out of there quickly.  Total construction timeframe is normally three, maybe four weeks.  It’s very quick.  It’s non-intrusive.  It’s really some preparation and trenching and then placing the pads and the systems.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether we will need – have you both have a sense that you know what the construction process entails because I don’t know whether she would need to continue developing that?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded our next step, and I believe Amy’s co-worker Rory had submitted a Building Permit which would require electrical and plumbing to be filed with our Building Department reviewed.  As I mentioned before, the site plan has already been preliminarily reviewed.  A set of comments went out both by myself and our fire inspector under the direction of the Director of Code Enforcement.  Those comments seem to be satisfactorily addressed.  Any recommendations or suggestions the board has tonight would be incorporated into a future correspondence.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  So, I want to just ask, in terms of our understanding of what is going on with these fuel cells: do you have additional questions?  Do you want to make any comments at all based on what you’ve heard?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what kind of noise does the unit generate?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the noise that the fuel cells generate is similar to that of a transformer.  It’s sort of a steady kind of humming noise. 

Mr. Peter Daly asked and you mentioned with remote monitoring.  I’m assuming that goes through the internet.

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded it does, yes.

Mr. Peter Daly asked what happens if communications between Sunnyville and your backup in India fail?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded we’ve never had a failure that I’m aware of happening.  Again, we have multiple layers of security which is the fuel cells will monitor themselves and shut themselves down if they need to and if we lost connectivity we would have the ability to manually shut off the systems too.  It sort of depends I guess.  If there was a reason that we needed to shut them down but we have several different ways that we can do that.  

Mr. Peter Daly stated it’s a worst case scenario, I know that.  It’s the kind of question that needs to be asked.

Mr. Robert Foley asked if there was any potential vandalism on the site, it would be detected through what Peter is talking about but also Home Depot has security cameras?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, we actually get an alert if somebody opens the doors, if they’re vandalized in that way.  Again, they’re locked and very secure but if someone was able to open the doors we would detect that at our monitoring center and could then put the fuel cells in standby mode if we needed to and shut them down, but we automatically get an alert if somebody does tamper and open the fuel cells. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked is this considered a micro-grid?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded it’s not.  It’s not a micro-grid, no.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked the Delmarva in Delaware, that wasn’t considered a micro-grid project?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded no, that was a micro-grid project.  That was actually a very different project that actually was sort of powering the grid.  In this case we’re just providing power to just this Home Depot building so we’re not feeding into the grid at all for this project.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so outside of emissions out into the air, is there anything that drips?  Do you have water or anything else that comes out?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded no.  We do utilize water.  We use about 200 gallons of water and it’s just regular municipal water at startup and that sort of jump starts the fuel cells and gets the electrochemical reaction happening.  At that point the water is completely, 100% recycled in the system in the same way that the heat is.  They don’t utilize or generate any water after that point.  The fuel cells don’t store hazardous materials of any kind.  Again, they just use natural gas directly from the natural gas pipeline.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else?  We did, as I said, at our work session last week, discuss this project and we have decided to approve it subject to the specifics that have already been outlined to you by staff. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this project by motion subject to the Department of Technical Services.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Amy Shanahan stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you’re welcome.

PB 5-08      b.
Letter dated August 10, 2015 from Percy and Barbara Montes requesting the 13th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Radio Estates Subdivision located at the end of Radio Terrace.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution 14-15 but that we also ask the applicant before another appearance to really explain their plan in getting this accomplished.  This is the 13th 90-day we’re approving.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 2-12      c.
Letter dated August 12, 2015 from Casey Devlin of Toll Brothers requesting a reduction in the performance bond posted for the Valeria project from $6,200,000 to $4,709,141.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated apparently there has been a change in that particular amount.  We received that change today.  So, in fact, the staff has decided that we would be doing to 4.95.  Is anybody from Valeria here on that one? No.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 15-15 approving the reduction in the bond.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 4-09      d.
Undated letter (received by the Planning Division on August 18, 2015) from the Church of the Holy Spirit requesting Planning Board approval of entrance columns, driveway lighting and a new parish sign located at 1969 Crompond Road.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, this application or request is still being reviewed by DOTS but I believe we have agreed to approve it by motion subject to their review and approval and by any Variances that the Zoning Board of Appeals may need to make on this application.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED):
PB 14-13    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Acadia Cortlandt Crossing, LLC  for Site Development Plan approval and for  Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 130,000 sq. ft. shopping center for property located at 3144 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 21 page set of drawings entitled “Cortlandt Crossing”  prepared by Divney, Tung & Schwalbe, LLP latest revision dated May 18, 2015 with the Cover Sheet, Site Location Map, Zoning Compliance Table, SP-1.1 Site Geometry Plan, SP-4.1 through 4.2 Conceptual Landscape Plan and SP-4.3 through 4.5 Landscape Details latest revision dated July 22, 2015.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  We will be adjourning it.  I don’t know whether there’s anybody here who would like to speak or comment on this particular application.  Yes?  You may come; identify yourself and your place of residence.
Mr. Tony Czarnecki stated Ms. Taylor and members of the Town Planning Board my name is Tony Czarnecki.  My wife and I lived on Joe Drive in the Town of Cortlandt for nearly 40 years.  Cortlandt Crossing should not be built at this time.  The adoption of any Site Plan for this proposed commercial development opposite the Cortlandt Town Center should be deferred.  There are serious traffic flow problems that need to be resolved first.  Any Site Plan for the proposed Cortlandt Crossing cannot be seriously entertained by the Town Planning Board in isolation from the traffic gridlock that currently exists in the immediate area, specifically the approaches to the intersections at Route 6 and Lexington Avenue.  The gridlock is especially acute during the morning rush hour, during lunch time, after the school day ends, during the evening rush hour and, of course, on weekends.  The proposed traffic light on Baker Street does not solve the problem it compounds the problem because it will slow down traffic.  The intersection of Route 6 and Lexington Avenue is ground zero for traffic gridlock in the Town of Cortlandt.  The construction of 600 additional parking spaces on the site of the proposed Cortlandt Crossing shopping center directly opposite the Cortlandt Town Center would condemn town residents to a permanent state of traffic gridlock.  That is the wrong approach to good government.  No additional plantings, fencing, or landscaped amenities can cover up the foolishness of this plan and its negative impact on town residents.  There is no significant mixed use of this property in the proposed Site Plan.  The Town Planning Board should declare a Moratorium on any new commercial development on Route 6 between Westbrook Drive and Lexington Avenue and freeze any further consideration of Cortlandt Crossing pending two reasonable actions: first, any and all traffic studies for Route 6 done before, during and after the construction of the Cortlandt Town Center should now be revisited and reevaluated.  Clearly, they were wrong in their projections about traffic flow and traffic impact.  We need to learn from past mistakes before we proceed again down a slippery slope and create a bigger mistake.  Second, a credible and independent traffic study should be commissioned to examine the immediate short term and long term impact of another shopping center with 600 additional parking spaces to support new retail activity at the proposed Cortlandt Crossing.  A Site Plan simply cannot be properly evaluated in isolation from the impact of traffic flow along this already overburdened corridor.  We didn’t move to the Town of Cortlandt to witness the re-creation of Central Avenue in Yonkers.  The parcel of land in question has been largely dormant for many years.  There’s no urgency to move ahead in a reckless manner on a Site Plan to build a new shopping center at this time.  Declare a Moratorium.  Do the traffic studies.  Do the planning work that is required.  Don’t punish town residents by making traffic gridlock the new normal in the Town of Cortlandt.  This time, get it right.  This time, say ‘no’ to Cortlandt Crossing.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked you’ve made those comments to the Town Board?

Mr. Tony Czarnecki replied, yes.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated okay, thank you.
Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so I guess you all know me by now.  Dominic Esposito; 6 Lucs Lane.  As the gentleman, I can’t remember the last name, I can’t pronounce it correctly but I totally, whole heartedly agree with him.  I’ve been saying it for a long time.  Every time I’ve been here, I don’t know how many times I’ve come in front of the board, the Town Board and I know the next question is: have you told the Town Board?  I get asked that every single time.  Yes I have.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked you know why we’re asking that question?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded that’s fine.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked no, but do you know why we’re asking that question?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded because you’re the…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated because we’re not in charge of traffic on this application.  We’re simply looking at the Site Plan. The traffic evaluations are done by the Town Board on this application.  We’re not the board.  The comments are being made but they’re being made to the wrong people.  But please, I’m sorry.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated but being the Town Board or the Planning Board, you do have an obligation to bring it forward correct?  That’s my understanding.

Mr. Jim Creighton responded no, we have an obligation to listen to you and review the Site Plan.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I whole heartedly agree with the gentleman that just spoke before.  We all know that there’s an existing traffic problem here, for years and no one is doing anything about it.  Whether it be the Town Board, whether it be the Planning Board, whether it be any other board in Cortlandt, I don’t know how many boards there are but all the boards.  Not one is addressing that, however what we want to do is we want to build all this and last time I spoke – I think Starbuck’s is going in there across the street from Geis Auto Mall, we’re building there, we’re building here, we’re building all over.  I mean, how much in this such short area?  We are damaging the residents in the area here.  We need to start thinking about that.  This property used to be owned by Mr. Frooks if I remember correctly, years ago and he wanted to build homes, residential homes which it’s what it’s supposed to be, what it was zoned for and he was denied many, many times.  Now, Acadia comes in and they want to take the residential portion of it and turn it into commercial and it seems like we’re going forward with it.  What’s going on?  I don’t get it.  I just don’t understand it.  We have an existing traffic problem.  We need to fix that first like the gentleman just said and I’ve said it many, many, many times but it seems like we’re negating that, we’re forgetting about that.  We’re saying “we have a traffic problem.”  “Oh well.  Acadia wants to come in and build property and all we’re looking at is how many trees we want to put up.  How nice we want it to look.”  Now, the latest plans, we want to elevate it.  It’s flat.  Why do we want to build a mountain?  It’s already flat, why do we want to elevate it?  I drive into that area – Lucs Lane, I live on Lucs Lane but on Baker Street all the time.  Do I want to drive beside a mountain when there’s nothing there now?  You’re disrupting my life.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so, in connection with the site plan, you’d prefer that to be flat instead of there being a berm?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded absolutely.  Why would anyone in their right mind say “you know what this property” – everybody looks for flat property right?  When you buy a home do you want to live on a hill?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when you talked about that it’s being “raised”, I think what Mr. Creighton was talking…

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued are you talking about this area here or are you talking about the entire center?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded I’m talking about along Route 6 and it comes into where Baker Street is.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the applicant would have to address that.  I don’t believe the applicant is purposely raising the site.  They’re dealing with existing grades that are there.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated this is an amendment to the first one, and the second one and the third one.  I don’t remember how many there were and the last one, the last change was to raise it.  That just came up at the last meeting.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated we were asking, going back several meetings, along Route 6 berming and a slight elevation from an esthetic standpoint, from a safety standpoint.  There’ll be a sidewalk there.  There’ll be parking above it and the intention, as I understood it, was to shield it a little from Route 6 and make it safer rather than – you’re talking about having it straight line, flat?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded that’s what it is now.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but the actual, overall site where the footprint of the buildings, I don’t believe that is being elevated.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated it is.  Yes, it’s being raised because last time we spoke we were talking about putting some sort of fencing so that a car can’t roll over the end of it…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s there on the front, that’s along the Cortlandt Boulevard, where the cars are parking.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated exactly, along Route 6 right?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that’s what I’m talking about.  That’s going to be elevated.  The point is, we talk safety, we talk about we want to put the berm there, we want to make it look pretty, we want to put the berm there because we want to make sure that the car doesn’t roll off the hill that we’re going to create and going down into Route 6 and cause an accident.  But, what about safety of the other portion of safety where we have Route 6 is just too much traffic and we have the issue on – I understand, but we have to take this into consideration when you do that.  Also, the Planning Board: why don’t we plan on not going into the residential portion?  We plan on putting trees.  We plan on this but add that into the planning part.  Don’t go into the residential portion of it.  There’s already buildings there.  Let them rebuild those buildings.  Make them look nice.  Fix up the landscape around it, don’t raise it.  Why are we going to lift it and turn it and reroute the stream and do all this other non-sense.  There’s no reason for it at all.  We already have an existing traffic problem.  Acadia’s already making business off the existing businesses that are there right now.  Just tell them to church up those buildings that are there now, those businesses.  That’s all they need to do.  They don’t need to go and extend and make it higher: 160,000 square foot and all that.  We have to stop this like the gentleman who just spoke earlier.  We’re asking you guys, the Town Board, everyone here, to stop this nonsense.   It’s such a short area, a small area that they’re building on, that we’re talking about here and we just keep compounding in this small area.  That’s a hill right there coming down from Lexington down to Baker Street.  It’s dangerous.  You put a light there, someone’s going to die.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can I ask you, as we’ve said it’s beyond our purview here. Your main concerns which we’ve been listening to and we’ve actually addressed them at the work session the other day.  Chris had sent us – we came up with different ideas, if you could focus on the backend of Lucs Lane and the impact this project may have on your neighborhood, your house, your neighbor’s house, you’re not happy with the idea of a forested buffer or transition area?
Mr. Dominic Esposito responded I’m not happy with…

Mr. Robert Foley stated with anything, I know.

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded no, hold on, I am not happy with arbitrarily anyone coming in here wanting to start a business, big business coming in here: hey you know what, we have a residential area, I just want to turn it into a commercial area because I want to make my building bigger.  No.  That was zoned years ago for a reason and it’s residential.  Leave it residential.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we were looking at that meadow area which we spoke about at the last meeting…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that’s correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and we were actually going to ask the applicant to revisit that idea.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you look up at the screen, this is a revision to a previous plan.  It used to be much more heavily treed all through here.  Based on discussions with the landscape architect it was determined that less trees would actually be better, live better.  It would be better for the environment while maintaining a buffer to create this meadow area.  This is the back.  Here’s the day-lighted stream.  There’s still a buffer which we have some other slides of and then this has been turned into grasses is what they call a ‘meadow’.  

Mr. Dominic Esposito asked what’s the purpose?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s what you were asking last time.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated there’s no reason for that to be there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what would you prefer?

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated 400 feet…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they can’t address that question.  The zoning is not their purview. It is the Town Board’s purview.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated right, the Town Board closed in February.  The last meeting was in February.  What happened?  Did they approve it?  I don’t even know what’s going on.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they haven’t approved it.  What I mentioned last time is running parallel to this is a Final Environmental Impact Statement, it’s this big book.  I have the preliminary one here.  The final one has not been submitted.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so essentially, we could be all wasting our time right now?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the Final Environmental Impact Statement is going to be submitted to the Town Board maybe within a month or so and that document deals with traffic, it deals with the zoning issue.  The Town Board would be the agency that would decide whether they’re going to move the zoning line or not and whether – there’s an entire traffic study in there and I’m not a traffic expert so I don’t want to get into an argument or a debate…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that traffic study’s tainted, like the gentleman said…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would imagine that the person that wrote the traffic study doesn’t think that it’s tainted. 

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I guarantee you that it is.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s a lengthy traffic study.  So I just wanted to put on the record that an idea that no traffic study was done.  There is one but that is beyond the purview of the Planning Board.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I don’t mean to be argumentative but that traffic study was done at the wrong place.  That traffic study was not done – I remember when we had that conversation here was done before Lexington and after the entrance to the mall area there.  Nothing was taken into consideration in between – please go back into the records and you’ll see that.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I’m just going to comment real quick on the traffic study.  I have a background in traffic and transportation.  I did not prepare the Traffic Impact Statement.  The individual who did has many years of experience.  The analysis was a quarter-wide study.  It went from the Lexington Avenue intersection all the way to the Bear Mountain Intersection and picked up every single driveway and intersection contained therein.  Revisions by the DOT have asked that the traffic study expand to include a few intersections into the Yorktown, past Lexington Avenue and that is all going to be evaluated and further studied.  This development allows us to analyze and address a lot of these traffic concerns that you and your neighbor have and a lot of the other residents have within the town.  Without this project, not saying, not proposing or saying it’s a good project or not a good project but this project is enabling the town to look and analyze and evaluate this quarter as a quarter-wide study which is a big positive for the entire town and community as far as traffic’s relating and coming up with solutions that’s going to be beneficial to the town.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so correct me if I misunderstood but what I just heard was that because of this project we’re doing the quarter-wide study but prior to this project we knew that there was an existing traffic problem along that corridor and we did nothing about it.  That’s what I just heard. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated you heard wrong.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s not entirely correct, but…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated partially?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no, the town has known that there’s a traffic situation along the corridor for many, many years…

Mr. Dominic Esposito asked so why are we increasing it?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we’re taking this opportunity to fully evaluate this corridor so that we can come up with solutions.  The traffic consultant who’s working on this is not working for the applicant.  He’s working for the town to try to come up with solutions that’s beneficial to the entire community not just necessarily the applicant.

Mr. Dominic Esposito asked so why not an independent study and have Acadia pay for it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they are.  Acadia is paying for our traffic consultant to do their study.  It’s not their traffic consultant.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated no, we’re talking independent, outside…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated he is independent.  He doesn’t work for the town.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated because the gentleman just said our town…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we hired them.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated paid for by Acadia.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated back to the beginning…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated when you said “so, we’re wasting our time:” the applicant is fully aware, if the Town Board decides what you’re saying has merit and they decide they don’t want to change the zoning, all of this that we’re dealing with, this site plan is irrelevant and the applicant understands that and is proceeding on a parallel track and we’re going through this process but you need to understand, if you have problems with traffic or with zoning or whatever, that’s all before the Town Board.  We’re looking at the only thing we’re empowered to look at and that is the site plan.  So, we’re happy to hear anything else you have to say about the site plan.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated perfect, the site plan, shorten it to 400 feet, that’s your site plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated there’s no reason to go into the residential portion of it.  You’re going to build a wall, a berm basically…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we hear you.  You should have started with that.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated we should have started with how horrible this project is and what the impact to the neighborhood is going to be. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but again, in most of the applications we deal with both the site plan as well as the impacts.  This application is different and because of the zoning and other issues and the sewer issues, the Town Board has taken a lot of the responsibility in terms of reviewing this project away from the Planning Board.  So, all we’re left with is site plan approval.  That’s all we can deal with: how many trees, what kind of landscape, how big the buildings, setbacks, whatever, but your issues of traffic all are going to be in the FEIS and that’s what the Town Board is going to deal with and they’re going to evaluate whether there’s a significant impacts or insignificant impacts and make a decision whether to rezone and move forward with the project.  All we’re here to do is if they do move forward we have to deal with the site plan.  That’s the way it works.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated site plan, let’s talk site plan.  Site plan; we’re going to demolish a 1,000, 1,500 trees to plant 200, horrible, horrible idea.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s many more than 200 trees that are going to be replanted.  It’s about 600 that are going to be re-planted trees plus approximately 20 acres are going to be preserved as open space;  but a typical public hearing doesn’t involve a debate, a  back-and-forth,  so I apologize for that.  You can continue with your questions…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Esposito, we have explained to you each time you come to this board meeting that we are not the parties…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I understand that Madame but I’ve also explained also that this is impacting me, it’s impacting the neighborhoods and it’s actually dangerous to my son when he comes home on the bus and there’s also the other gentleman who has spoken how dangerous it is with the school right next door.  But, now let’s talk site plan, site plan is we have a berm that you’re going to put right by my house and I’ll be looking at a wall of dirt.  We need to demolish that.  We need to get rid of that.  I don’t want to look at a wall.  I didn’t come to Cortlandt okay, to come here for as many years as I’ve been here and all of sudden for someone to come and build and build me in, build a mountain so when I look out my window I see a mountain…

Mr. Robert Foley stated if the berm is not there…
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what are you going to be looking at if the berm is not there?

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’re going to be looking at the inevitability of what we’re trying to tell you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you would be looking at buildings and cars.  Is that what you want to look at?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you want to potentially look at a building rather than a berm?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded I don’t want to look at a building and I don’t want to look at a berm because right now the first 400 feet that’s in front; I’m not looking at any buildings and I’m not looking at any berms so if you stay the same I won’t be looking at any berms and I won’t be looking at any buildings.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but if we don’t stay the same, Mr. Esposito, we thought that you would prefer a landscaped berm to looking through and maybe seeing cars and buildings and whatever.  I think most people would prefer a more picturesque backyard or someplace to look out to.  I don’t know.

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded no.  I disagree.  I apologize but – sorry, but I disagree with that.  I’d rather not look at a berm or a building.  I’d rather leave it the way it was and…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but if it wasn’t rezoned and somebody wanted to build residential homes there, you’d be looking at other residential homes potentially as well.

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded and that is what’s picturesque not hiding a building, not making a berm so I can hide a building.  That’s the purpose of the berm so you can hide the building.  If you put residential homes, I’d be looking at nice residential homes, flowers in front of it, you know nice driveways, people coming home.  I’d be looking at that.  That is picturesque.  That is nice.  That is a residential neighborhood, not commercial.  That’s the difference.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what do you look out from your backyard now?  What do you see?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded trees, nature.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked and with the berm you’d see trees?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded I would see a hill first right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, it’s hard to see but on that screen these sections talk about what you would actually see.  The existing trees would remain, beyond the existing trees a berm would be put up.  On top of that berm would be additional trees and landscaping so your view, in theory and the Planning Board required the applicant to go back and redesign this, your view would not change.  In pretty much not change and that’s in the DEIS and those will also be in the FEIS.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that’s all hypothetically.  It’s hypothetical that we won’t cause extra flooding.  This is all hypothetical.  Now, the other thing too, let’s talk the meadow.  When you have a meadow there, that meadow’s going to bring people in there, walking their dogs and so on and so forth, at night…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so, we want to address that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s why we were asking you earlier.  We discussed this…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we asked the applicant to address that.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated cut it down to 400 feet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, we have an agenda.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I understand that but thank you, but just one thing; please bear in mind that the traffic is horrendous already there and there’s an existing traffic problem and we need to address that.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked thank you.  Is there anyone else who needs to make a comment here on this particular application?
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing to the next meeting which is October 6th and so the applicant is going to revisit…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they were not able to get you the full scale architectural renderings for today’s meeting.  That’s one of the reasons it’s being adjourned but also based on discussions at the work session and tonight I guess we’ll have to talk about a potential redesign of some of that meadow area.  I think it was sort of mentioned, with respect to the public if you see…

Mr. Robert Foley stated what Mr. Esposito was trying to say, not to bring people in to use that meadow carte blanche: end up parking on the end of his street, walking through the tree area to…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated in this area right here on the map is the day-lighted stream and the pond where some amenities are proposed.  One concept would be to fence it off so you only can stay in this vicinity versus being able to get all back in there but those would be the things that you want an explanation of.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but also the fence from the end of Lucs – where the resident lives to prevent people from driving into Lucs Lane.  I’m looking at Lucs Lane, where they could walk through to an open meadow to fly kites, play soccer, walk dogs.  We would want to prevent that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s a pretty substantial buffer before you get to the open meadow but they could address the idea…

Mr. Robert Foley stated it becomes known…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we’re getting rid of most of the meadow anyway.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I thought we would get rid of the meadow by planting more trees in there and making it more forested.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated except it started out with the trees and the forest and it was our own landscape architect that said that was not good agriculture or whatever.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we know that but I think we should go back to the other plan.  I’d like to see that.

Mr. Peter Daly stated just for the record Chris, the elevations of the cross sections, of the berm, are they to scale?  Are they accurate to scale?  The berm itself from those elevations is not very…

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the cross sections provided are to scale.  It’s very hard to see with the PDFs on the screen but all hard copies are to scale.

Mr. Peter Daly stated that’s what I kind of thought.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and is the overall footprint, where the buildings are being proposed in the parking area, how far up is that raised from the road level of Lucs Lane or Route 6?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the applicant will answer that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s not a lot of feet if it is at all, right?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were on the question, is there anything else?

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 1-15      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Montauk Student Transport, LLC, for the property of Worth Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a school bus depot with a total of 187 parking spaces, a maximum of 92 parking spaces for full and van size buses and 95 parking spaces for passenger vehicles, a fuel storage and dispensing facility and the use of the existing 4,200 sq. ft. garage/office facility and storage barn building for a business office, employee lounge and garage for light service and maintenance located on a 4.98 acre parcel of property at 301 6th Street as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Montauk Student Transport, LLC” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated August 10, 2015.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the Board, Brad Schwartz from Zarin & Steinmetz here representing the applicant.  Cronin’s office did make a submission in August in advance of tonight’s meeting.  Our client has also authorized the preparation of a traffic study, again performed by the town’s traffic consultant and you’ll be receiving that written authorization, if not later this week, early next week but in communication about that.  What we would like to do is adjourn our presentation until the time of the traffic study is completed so that we can make a full presentation addressing the items that were in Cronin’s memo and submission as well as the outcome of the traffic study.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Is there anybody here who would like to make a comment regarding this particular application?  Come up; identify yourself and your place of residence.

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated good evening.  My name is Bernard Vaughey.  I live at 215 Broadway in Verplanck.  I’ve been up here a few times before looking over this project and I was wondering if the applicant has provided any of the information for the past traffic on this property and if he has where can that information be found?  He had promised two meetings ago and in a letter on June 19th that they would provide more information that more than 6 vehicles used this property.  Do you know if that’s been provided or not?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I’m not aware of it, no.

Mr. Bernard Vaughey asked do you know if that’s been provided?

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated alright so we’re waiting for that.  Just because the fuel tanks were up until 2006 does not allow the applicant to claim the use of a historic property for fueling storage and distribution.  Can the owner of the adjacent properties with tanks still in place claim the same uses?  Although we all know that that hasn’t been true for decades.  When was the last time these tanks were filled with the delivery from a barge?  Was it 1960s, early ‘70s, maybe 1975, 40 years ago?  It’s no longer what they are portraying it to be.  Portrayal of their property as a fueling storage and distribution location needs to be modified.  It was a depot for 3 or 4 trucks, a depot where the fuel trucks were loaded with product elsewhere, no more, no less but nowhere as near – I thought it was 67 now I see the numbers are changing.  They had indicated it was going to be 67 buses and large vehicles and 118 personal vehicles making up to four trips a day.  It’s nowhere near 3 to 4 vehicles it was.  At the last meeting I brought up the issue of the portrayal of the property as being existing 37,000 square feet versus the – if you take a look at the town’s plans they were 18,000 square feet from the past property.  Do we know what we are reviewing?  Originally, when it was Verplanck Fuel they had an 18,000 square foot parking lot.  They are now portraying it as 39,000 square feet.  Does 39,000 square feet more than doubling space from when they took ownership as a result of operations they did which resulted in tickets and stop work orders from the town.  See their January letter which documents that violations from the parking buses without an approved site plan, enlarging the parking lot without approval and violating a stop work order.  Why are we considering this to be 39,000 square feet versus the 18,000 square feet that it was prior?  Is there any reason or rationale for that?  Could you answer that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I’m not quite certain I understand exactly your point sir.  I really don’t. 

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated well, they’re portraying their existing operation as – they came in without plans, approved site plans.  They more than doubled their area and they are using that currently to operate.  Is this allowable with the Planning Board and with the other elements of the town that you can come in, double the size of the existing operation, you can get violations for doing the work without approvals, without approved site plans and they are allowed to continue to operate without repercussions. 

Mr. John Klarl stated I don’t think there’s lack of repercussions, there’s been prosecution by the town and in that prosecution there’s been certain agreements made but I don’t know about the 39,000 square feet.

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated again, their application right now does not indicate the original dimensions of what the parking area was when they took possession of the property which if you look at the GIS from the town it’s roughly around 18,000 square feet.  They claim, as a given right, of being 39,000 square feet which is where they went in, they enlarged the parking lot for which they got the violations on.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated what Bernie, Mr. Vaughey is referring to is the expansion of the parking lot and the initial use of the site for parking of buses.  The Building Department, Code Department issued a violation for illegally parking the buses.  Subsequently, a standstill agreement was reached with the town to continue operations of the site with their current use with the understanding that they would approach the Planning Board for a full site plan development.  Their proposal now is to increase the parking lot from the 18,000 and change square feet of parking area to accommodate the 67 buses for the school year; 92 buses for parking in the summer time to add parking lot and impervious area of somewhere in the vicinity of 40,000 square feet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so this application in part is corrective measures to…

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, as part of the agreement from what I understand, they right now have to stand still and they can continue operations with the existing footprint but their proposal, as long as they reach out to the Planning Board, as they have been doing to evaluated this proposed site plan and now we’re going through the environmental and procedural direction of the town’s staff and Planning Board.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so it’s really part of this application, is the answer to your question.  Considering that…

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated part of my problem with it is that they are assuming that that additional 21 or 20,000 square feet that doubling is already a given because they’re indicating from the existing 39,000 square foot lot.  All their paperwork indicates a 39,000 square feet.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s not a given.  During this process, during the review of this at any time if they can’t meet the environmental impacts, they can’t meet storm water for example then there would have to be a reduction in impervious area to accommodate the requirements.  We have to review and as we’re reviewing this application in front of the Planning Board these are decisions that can be made as far as the overall shape and size of the lot.
Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated another issue: the town website indicates that the town maintains over 320 miles of roads.  I’m assuming that’s lane miles.  It’s my understanding over the past two years the town has had an aggressive repaving program, a substantial cost to the town and over those two years they’ve been able to pave 30 lane miles.  The town can sustain these costs and this program, each road in the town would get paved roughly every 21 years.  Broadway is well over that and is not currently scheduled.  The last time Broadway was paved was in the early ‘90s, longer than the average.  It has structural problems in the pavement.  It was not built to current standards and it will cost substantially more to be repaired as it currently is than a simple repaving.  We have thin overlays, thin pavement sections and no sub-base.  There’s substantial distress in the southbound travel lanes over the 80 year old water mains.  There’s multiple water lines and pavement repairs, 11th Street which have been displaced, affecting ride-ability.  This causes larger vehicles, including the buses, to impact the pavement causing further distress.  Even repairs performed recently and over the years are showing signs of distress.  I’ll submit pictures to staff later on because I had problems printing them up.  Increased traffic volumes and vehicle loadings on Broadway will accelerate and compound these issues.  If you do decide to move forward with this, please do not allow Montauk Bus to use Broadway as their access point.  The board should not consider Broadway as their preferred route or any route for the buses.  The road is in poor shape with no sidewalks for separation of pedestrian traffic and for vehicular traffic.  It should be excluded from any use by Montauk Bus Company for safety and other reasons.  Sixth Street has always been the main route into Verplanck.  It was originally the route for the trolley, location of many stores and businesses.  Although it’s a longer route, if the board were to consider granting this application it should be considered with the restriction at the designated bus route will only be 6th Street to Kings Ferry to 9A.  This route is of more substantial construction being an asphalt overlay over concrete pavement with sidewalks and at least one side of the roadway for a substantial portion of its length to effectively separate pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  There should be less of an impact on the infrastructure due to destruction of the pavement and it should be safer due to the separation of pedestrian and vehicular traffic especially during winter months and inclement weather.  As for the historical review, the applicant has submitted an archeological report prepared by his agent.  A subsequent reviewed by the New York State Office of Parks and Recreation Historic Preservation.  Has this been reviewed by the town’s historian?  If so, where is that report on their review.  If not, why is the town historian not reviewed it?  Has the historian for Westchester County been consulted to review this?  Do we know if the New York State agent that was responsible for New York State signing off ever visited the site or simply reviewed some database from his office in Albany?  Since the applicant’s report indicates that the address is Cortlandt and not Verplanck with the New York State agent when it reviewed a database was he even looking at the right area of our township or would he get erroneous information due to the location?  How does the town verify this?  The applicant’s report indicates that the brick structures could be drying sheds or kilns.  The preparer does not know if these structures were drying sheds or kilns and indicates that due to the lack of soot it makes the former usage more likely.  How do we know if these structures were possibly fire chambers or some other part of kilns on the property to allow temperature regulation or other functions?  Given the long structures shown on various maps in the report, how do we know those structures were not the drying sheds that were necessary for operations to dry the bricks prior to firing and that these remaining structures were not part of the kilns on the property?  The applicant’s report also indicates that during the 1800s the brick yard companies employed hundreds of workers during brick-making season and that the Hudson Valley became the pre-eminent brick-making area in the world.  Not in the county or the state but in the world during that time.  Where in the Hudson Valley do we have any remnants of brick yards which helped to shape our communities?  These brick yards helped shape Cortlandt and the surrounding areas.  Where do we acknowledge the actual manufacturing process?  We cannot and should not allow these potential historic remnants to be destroyed for an operation that does not benefit the immediate community; an operation that can and should be located elsewhere.  I hope the town will do further investigations and not accept the conclusion of the application’s report that no further investigations are recommended.  I thank you for your time.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  Are there any other comments on this particular application?

Mr. Jim Bell stated good evening, my name is Jim Bell and I’m a resident of Verplanck.  The one thing I wanted to address is, and Chris on June 3 Artie and I had sent you an email regarding the 67 buses during the school year and the 98 buses that are proposed to be stored in the summer time.  I just want to make sure you include that email, make it available to the applicant.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what was the date for that?

Mr. Jim Bell responded June 3rd of this year.  I just want to make sure that people understand that 67 buses with the drivers coming in in the morning, buses going out, drivers coming back, drivers leaving; that happens twice a day.  The math on that’s like 96,000 additional vehicle trips in-and-out of the hamlet of Verplanck annually.  If they store 98 buses there and if they were ever to operate 98 buses out of that location, it would be like 142,000 additional vehicle trips in-and-out of the hamlet.  I just want to make sure that you include that information and you guys understand that the amount of traffic is significantly increased in either scenario.  Thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have a copy of that letter.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is that the letter?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, we all have a copy of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else to comment here on this application?  I don’t know whether you wanted to quickly just mention whether material is upcoming or forthcoming with respect to traffic study…

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded traffic study is forthcoming.  A lot of comments that were made tonight have been made previously.  The scope of work that your traffic consultant prepared includes: bus routing, the sufficiency of surrounding streets and maintenance issues, the trip generations that this gentleman just mentioned.  So, all of these topics that have been mentioned at the various public hearings have been incorporated in one form or another into the scope of work that AKRF will prepare and that report will be forthcoming, again, will address the outcome at a future meeting.  But, I want the public to know that other comments have been heard, incorporated into the scope of work and AKRF, now that school’s back in session, I think after the Holidays pass, AKRF will prepare the traffic study. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words, one of the questions I had, the traffic study will commence…

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded I think the idea was the middle of this month…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated September 16th I think.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and there’s no Holidays…

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated after the Holidays.

Mr. Peter Daly stated after Yum Kippur…

Mr. Robert Foley asked and also will extend for one week or how many days?  Do you know the length of it yet?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the traffic study, as Mr. Schwartz was mentioning, is actually going to extend for a week.  It encompasses more than just the intersections of 6th Street and it’s also going to account for a trip generation and also trip distribution to account for some comments that were mentioned as far as the routing of the buses leaving the site going down Broadway or going down to Kings Ferry.  It’s a robust and comprehensive traffic study which will take about a week to perform to collect the data and a few weeks after that to analyze and prepare the report.  We’re hoping to have something back for the October meeting but more than likely the traffic study in full depth would be ready by November.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’re moving towards November because that’s what we discussed at our work session.  That gives you ample opportunity to get your materials together and get them distributed so that we have time to review them as well.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and we’ll have our consultant here at that meeting to go over the results and findings of the traffic study for any of the residents that are concerned.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the actual on-site field study, one week is sufficient?  Is that the norm?  I’m trying to remember.

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes.  It’s going to be a combination of manual and automated traffic recorders so it’ll be a combination and it will take place over a weeklong period to collect the proper data.

Mr. Robert Foley asked I also had a question on the archeological and historic.  This data, the report that we received – that Montauk Student Transport forwarded but the actual study was conducted by the New York State Archeological and Historical – this is the Phase IA and Phase IB?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that was done by an archeological firm hired by the applicant.

Mr. Robert Foley stated by the applicant.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ve discussed this with the staff and also with Mr. Vaughey.  One possibility, if the board is so desirous is AKRF has staff archeologists on staff so we could refer it to them.  It would be a cost to the applicant.  It would be similar to wetlands or biodiversity.  The applicant can do the study.  It’s always at their risk because then our consultants if you desire someone else to take a look at it.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why haven’t we used an independent…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we didn’t actually require the study.  They did it on their own so I would think that it’s logical to have someone on our side review it.  Typically, whether it’s wetlands or biodiversity we skip all that, we just do it ourselves.  There are have been examples where – similar to Hudson National.  They had their own arborist do a ton of work out there then we got our arborist to go out there.  I think we would have to have someone – it would be a question of the scope of that is that is it solely reviewing the existing report or does it include a little bit of field work and actually going out there between now and the November meeting we’ll figure that out…

Mr. Robert Foley stated well this report appears to be thorough and whatever.  I’d really like to know if someone else could take a look at it especially the part the brick arch…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we can also get in touch with our local historians as was mentioned.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated and we have no objection with any of that peer review.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our November 5th meeting.

Ms. Marlene Bell stated I also live on 9th Street.  Since the summer time came and the traffic has diminished from the buses, the garbage has also diminished.  When the school year kicks in again tomorrow, I believe it will be tomorrow or this week, it will be clear if the garbage we were constantly walking around our streets picking up.  It was awful and it has diminished as soon as the bus traffic diminished.  It was completely noticeable that it diminished and it was horrible so I just wanted to say that one.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated so I move that we adjourn this public hearing for two months to our November 5th meeting awaiting the results of the traffic study.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and I think also any additional materials that come forth from the consultant, the architectural or archeological I’m sorry.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, that meeting is on a Thursday not on a Tuesday because Tuesday’s election day so it will be Thursday November 5th.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.
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PUBLIC HEARING (NEW):

PB 1-14      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Hudson National Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Country Club and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a private golf driving range and teaching facility located on an approximately 19.4 acre parcel of property located north of the existing Hudson National Golf Club, south of Hollis Lane, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Hudson National Golf Course Driving Range and Teaching Facility” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated January 5, 2015.

Mr. Bob Davis stated good evening.  I’m Bob Davis attorney for Hudson Nation Golf Club and with me tonight is our engineer; Ralph Mastromonaco, our arborist Scott Cullen and our wetlands consultant Steve Marino.  We’ve been talking about this matter, as you know, with the board since December.  This is our first public hearing.  As the board wishes, would you like me to give a brief summary for a few minutes, of the project or would you like to go right to seeing if there’s any public questions?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded this is a public hearing.  I don’t know whether anybody here is going to comment on that.  Maybe then before they comment just bring everybody up-to-date.

Mr. Bob Davis stated as you know the project entails a driving range and a teaching facility to adjoin the club’s existing golf course in Croton and last year we obtained a determination of your Zoning Board that combined with the Croton property, the club meets all of the bulk requirements for a Special Permit for a country club use from your board.  We’ve been working with the board and staff since December after we were done with the Zoning Board.  I’ll just take you through some of the issues a little bit, summarize what we’ve been discussing all those months.  From the outset, for any member of the public that is here we did make it clear that access from the site would only be from the existing club in Croton.  Hollis Lane will not be used at all.  There’ll be no visibility of this activity on the site from Hollis Lane.  The primary issues we’ve been addressing before your board was initially steep slopes and then trees and then followed by wetlands.  The slopes we put aside fairly quickly.  There was one very steep slope that the board was concerned with on its site walk that would have required a substantial retaining wall and we eliminated that issue by removing all work away from that.  As a result we saved two thirds more of an acre of undisturbed woodland with 27 regulated trees.  With respect to trees, it bares noting from the outset that this is a very green project.  It involves almost entirely undisturbed or landscaped open space and in that regard there’s a number of things worth noting.  First, out of the 19.4 acre site, 6.7 acres or about 34% of the site will remain totally undisturbed, much of which will be indeed restricted area and that will include a public walking trail for which the applicant will be dedicating an easement to connect up with the existing trail network.  Of the 12.7 acres of the property that will be disturbed to some degree, it’s worth noting that 11.7 of those acres will still remain green space, not impervious surface.  So 95% or more, probably more of the site will remain as open space.  Also, of the 12.7 acres, about a third of that; 4.1 acres is very densely infested with vines so the town arborist opined that that area is not even worthy of tree preservation.  Indeed, only 3 protected trees on the entire site, 3 dogwoods slightly over 4 inches will be removed from the disturbance area.  The applicant will be preserving 696 regulated trees or greater than 4 inches; 48 of those are over 24 inches and a similar substantial number of unregulated trees will be protected as well.  It’s important to note that the majority of those saved trees already form a buffer between the site and the adjacent parcels to the west so that the trees being removed will have no effect whatsoever on removing any screening from the driving range and the use still will not be visible from adjoining properties.  It also bares noting most of the trees being removed are secondary growth.  This property into the ‘60s and so forth used to be a farm and had various buildings, driveways, other uses.  There’s still remnants of those uses on the site so this was not a pristine forest.  The disturbed area will almost be entirely planted with grass along with other trees and shrubs that we’re installing.  Only about a fifth of an acre of the entire 19.4 acre site will be impervious surface and that’ll consist mostly of the small teaching building that will be erected.  The applicant has basically done everything practicable to mitigate the trees being removed, which although numerically large in number are relatively insubstantial in nature and in addition to address the agreed upon figure of 556 trees which is required under your tree law to be replaced, replanted, there’ll be a 100 new trees of related size.  There’ll 250 additional small trees at a 10 to 1 credit ratio.  There’ll be a 1,000 new shrubs, again, at a 10 to 1 credit ratio.  We’ll also be remediating the invasive vines on 0.846 acres, that’ll enable us to save another 34 trees, a number of them over 24 inches.  We agreed in discussions with staff and the board to a 75% credit toward our replanting requirement for that area or for doing that work.  Also a 75% credit for the 4-acre vine-infested area which we said was not worthy of preservation and we’re taking no credit at all for the planting of all the grass and everything else we’re doing to mitigate the greenness of the site.  All of that work came down to a result and agreed deficit in our tree replacement of 170 trees and at an agreed value per tree of $300 per tree that comes up to $51,000.  We’ll be making a payment of $51,000 to the town upon approval to plant trees anywhere in the town that the town wishes.  After we did trees we also presented a substantial wetlands mitigation plan that went through at least two major iterations to replace the effected wetlands on the site which probably were primarily created in recent – the last decade or two by the drainage from the golf course itself.  Nonetheless, we’re going to replace that by more than a 2 to 1 ratio and we’re going to do that by enhancing the area of the pond that’s on the existing course relatively near to this site and also by removing substantial invasive vegetation there and non-native vegetation including fragmities.  The town’s wetlands consultant has reviewed that plan and has indicated that our mitigation plan is consistent with the town’s criteria in its wetlands law for mitigation and it’s in a much more acceptable location, a much more beneficial location because of the nature of those worthwhile wetlands than it would be as we originally proposed to do work within those wetlands that are being effected most of which are man-created.  With respect to the wetlands mitigation, in addition to the planting we’re doing as part of our tree mitigation, we’re going to have a minimum of 19 additional trees and a minimum of 125 shrubs as part of that plan.  That pretty much summarizes what we’ve been through with your board these last six or more months.  We’ll be happy to answer any questions.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much.  As I said before, this is a public hearing and if there’s anyone who wishes to make a comment at this point, please come up, identify yourself and your place of residence.

Mr. Paul Buckhout stated 40 McGregor Lane.  Could we look a little closer at tee-off area 409 I believe it is, 509?  Can you enhance it at all?  Thank you very much.  The area where you see the little split there, there’s a free-running stream that runs right there and there’s also wetlands right there.  When we went on the site visit for this project, none of this area was part of the site visit.  Now this area is a little bit dry now but it’s very wet.  The few times I’ve been there, it’s been very wet.  After this proposal was made, there was an objection to the tree survey being done at all because the trees were just going to be cut down.  Finally, that was relented.  The CAC, which I’m a part of, has written a letter condemning the project, that’s pretty unusual for the CAC.  It was felt by the CAC that the environmental destruction of 1,200 trees and 7,500 square feet of wetlands had to be measured against the enhancement of the golf course.  If I switch to a document produced by Hudson National on 3/3/15: “regarding and contouring of the site will not affect the drainage patterns in the area with all runoff and collected ground water being conveyed to the same discharge points where flows are currently concentrated.  The immediate impact will be the loss of the wetland vegetative component in an otherwise upland wooded environment.”  But, to me what’s going to happen is this will wipe out the current wetlands and all the resident frogs, salamanders and turtles and this is okay according to the documents because the changed water course will flow to the same off site areas it did along with some added fertilizer and pre-emergent weed killers.  “The water that emerges from this area goes underground and it ends up in a large pond in the Britain Brook Sanctuary.”  This is from the Coleman report 6/1/15, this is wetland #2: “the wetland is well established and consists of dominant wetland vegetation.  The vegetative structures provide habitat for the resident wild life species and plays a role in the nutrient uptake and treatment of the water emanating from the adjacent detention basin.”  In other words, when you’ve got a golf course, you’ve got fertilizer, you’ve got pre-emergent weed killers; you don’t want dandelions or anything like that so that water somewhat has these chemicals in it.  This property offers sort of a buffer between the golf course and the Britain Brook Wildlife Sanctuary in terms of cleaning the water a little bit.  “The proposed site plan will require that approximately 7,500 square feet of the 8,300 square feet of wetland water course be permanently altered which represents approximately 90% of the wetland.  The proposed plans as presented will mitigate this impact by creating a compensatory mitigation within the wetland water course along the western side of the wetland.”  So, under the Coleman reports and recommendations one of the things that he recommended was; “due to the size of the wetland the jurisdictional determination should be provided by the army corps of engineers to verify whether the wetland proper would be a sufficient size to be regulated.”  I was wondering was this done?  Under 7 of the recommendations: “the majority of compensatory wetland mitigation proposals usually requires the amount of new wetland created is larger to offset the ability of the existing areas to provide suitable replacement of the wetland function.  Adjacent areas may not provide suitable hydrological support to sustain the creation of new wetlands as the area is a combination of depressionable and sloped wetlands, the method and analysis on how this wetland will be sustained should be provided in more detail.”  In other words, wetlands are wetlands because they’re in the right place when they are there.  When you move them it doesn’t necessarily work.  “The driving range will be converted to turf grasses which require fertilizers and potential chemical treatments in order to maintain the surface of the golf course.  Treatment of runoff of turf areas should be addressed on how runoff of non-point sources will be addressed prior to the discharge into the wetland areas.”  I was wondering: will the town know what fertilizers are being used as they do on the other golf courses in the town?  Certainly in watching the last Planning Board session, Mr. Creighton asked about shortening the driving range and I believe it was Mr. Mastromonaco: “well, we’re going to discuss this with staff” and then said “well, that’s open for further discussion.”  The reply came, as close as I can figure, a few days ago with pictures; large, long, professional golf ranges and the answer was “no.”  But, if you look closely at the pictures, not a single one of those golf ranges is next to an Audubon sanctuary.  The number one reason for bird loss is the fragmentation of the forest they live in, the worst thing you can do for a wetland is to try to replace it.  It is there for a reason.  There are no pristine wetlands in Cortlandt.  A forest like this one growing from the 40s is an old forest with a nice mix of mature hardwoods.  This project needs to get out of the wetlands.  I’d just like to say, if this driving range was down next to the asphalt batching plant I’d be all for it.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  Is there anyone else who wishes to speak?  Please come up.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do we have the CAC report?  Was that given to us?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a while ago, wasn’t it?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, it’s June 3rd or something.

Mr. Bojan Petek stated I live on Hollis Lane.  I also have a related concern, not so much for the wetlands as for the residents because some of us are downhill from this property and a certain portion of this property drains in our direction.  I have a copy of the topographic map that Mr. Kehoe has given me a copy of and this area is actually mostly the undisturbed area, however, I’m concerned that some of the pest, fertilizer and pest management chemicals can find their way down towards our wells.  A lot of us still use wells for our water.  Another problem is the volume of water during storms and I understand that the storm water a SWPPP is going to be prepared but doesn’t exist yet.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the SWPPP is required for this type of work, the amount of disturbance.  It has been preliminarily designed but not fully vetted and reviewed by staff.  That will be fully vetted and reviewed, construction drawings and improving drawings will need to be submitted and reviewed as well.
Mr. Petek stated one of my neighbors who is not able to be here, Mr. and Mrs. Fleming; they live just down the road, have had a problem with severe volume of water that seems to have gotten worse over the years.  It was bad enough that their basement flooded, even though they had a very significant amount of drainage already on their property but it spilled over one year, maybe three or four years ago and basically wrecked their heating system and everything.  Since then, they’ve had to add more – I think they added another two 16-inch pipes, something fairly large just to handle the amount of water coming through their property.  That water comes from the Con Edison property which is just on the other side from the golf course property.  Now, there’s also, aside from the acute problem of heavy flow after a storm or after a thaw there’s also a chronic problem with water.  For example, the right-of-way that Hollis Lane – Hollis Lane has an extension that goes across a lot owned by Village of Croton, it crosses the power lines and then it joins the Woodland’s road that’s on the golf course property.  That road actually contains drainage on the side of it, very old installation because clearly there’s a very steep slope right adjacent to it.  A lot of that water coming along the road on the golf course’s new property is going down and ending up on Hollis Lane and we have an ice batch every winter that seems to be there all the time.  It’s worst when there’s traffic on the access road and it creates the ruts along that unpaved road.  We’ve tried to discourage people from going in-and-out of there but apparently someone’s still allowing them to open the gate which nobody knows who has the keys to that at this point but people come to hunt and everything and they rut the road and then that road becomes quite a conduit for water in the winter.  We have an ice patch right on that section of road.  That’s basically it.  I’m concerned about the pollutants that may be used in the turf management and I don’t know how much of that will be heading in our direction but that’s a concern.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  I think I want to just acknowledge for the record that we did receive a letter from a Mrs. Doris Kinney who, in addition to some of the concerns you’ve mentioned, was also concerned about the number of construction vehicles and trucks that would access the site; which roads with people who were coming to the facility be using, whether or not the permit, if granted, will allow them; ‘them’ meaning Hudson National Golf to construct any other buildings either now or in the future.  She has identified at least five or six different of her own concerns and staff has this letter.  I would expect that there would be – I don’t know whether it’s been shared with you or not but it’s very recent.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we saw that letter and I believe Mr. Mastromonaco spoke to her and alleviated those concerns.  Madame Chair, if you want, in terms of the comments that were made we can respond a little bit.  The only thing I would point out…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that would be good because it would be in the record at this point.

Mr. Bob Davis stated and Mr. Marino can speak a little bit too but Mr. Buckhout was addressing Mr. Coleman’s report of June 1st which was on our initial plan that we had submitted in May.  Apparently did not address our most recent plan which I eluded to before in which Mr. Coleman viewed in his report of July 28th and where he said that we were well within the guidelines of the town.  The town doesn’t have a specific ratio of wetlands replacement.  It calls for a larger amount of replacement, it doesn’t say the ratio but we’re replacing at more than a 2 to 1 basis and Mr. Coleman found that our mitigation and plan to be consistent with the town’s criteria.  Also, unlike what Mr. Buckhout said we’re no longer doing that wetland work in the area these wetlands that are being affected.  We’re doing it in a much more valuable wetland in terms of biodiversity and otherwise with the existing pond and that’s where we’re adding the 16,000 square feet of wetlands and new plantings and so forth.  So, much of the comments that were given are outdated based on the record before the board now.  We did also look into – it wasn’t a mere shrug of our shoulders or ‘no’ in terms of moving the second tee.  We went over that very carefully.  Since the last meeting I actually went before that and I gave you a number of factors regarding that last time but after the August meeting we invoked the auspices of our designer of the golf course which is one of the preeminent designers in the world of golf courses: Fazio Design and both he and Mr. Mastromonaco interacted with the town staff and demonstrated that we, as the wetland loss as we don’t have any practical alternative to that second tee.  If we didn’t have the second tee we’d have no real functional basis to do the entire project and one of the main things to remember with that two of the points beyond which I mentioned last time is the second tee there was some misunderstanding that maybe it’s only used by one person at a time.  In effect, it’s primarily use to alleviate capacity problems that the club has currently.  At least 13, somewhere 12 or 13 golfers can use that second tee.  That alleviates a lot of issues but more importantly than that, the removal of that second tee would have no beneficial impact on the wetlands because that area has to be planted with turf anyway.  It’s a landing area for the other tee on the other side so the work would be done in that area regardless if people were hitting balls from that area or not.  It can’t be moved anywhere else, not only for topographical reasons but if you made it closer, as the design people discussed in great detail with staff, it would be too short.  The current range is only about 240, 250 and with modern technology and golf and the improvement of the athletes playing golf there’s a large percentage of people now that would hit the ball well beyond anyplace that it would be moved to make it shorter.  We didn’t just give that short rift.  It was looked at extremely carefully…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated see, and I see it exactly opposite to what you’re saying. I read the letter and I’m saying “wow, people are hitting the ball longer.”  You’re arguing for one tee.  That’s how I read the letter.

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, not to – he’s arguing for two tees in large part.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re telling me people hit the ball over 400 yards.

Mr. Bob Davis responded well some do, yes…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked okay, so isn’t that arguing there’s a safety issue here?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, he pointed out the fact that you could not increase the size of the first tee because of the various topographical situations so that the capacity of the first tee was inadequate and he showed you a number of examples where all of the other major courses; I think he gave you five, six including…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but clearly, you selectively picked those courses because they were 400 yard private ranges.  I’ve played in many courses where you can only use irons – we’re some very, very famous courses.  You can’t be selective here.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we do have some representatives of the course here on that issue but my understanding is that they carefully – it’s not just at random with everyone hitting balls at each other even if they can hit that far.  It’s carefully managed to alleviate those safety issues.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re going to have people on both sides.  You’re making the argument saying that you need the length of the course because people hit it a long way and then you’re saying: yet I need both tees and the distance is such that people could hit it into other people.  You can’t have it both ways.

Mr. Bob Davis responded sometimes it’s in there, sometimes it isn’t.  The major point I was making that is even if the second tee were removed, the work would still be done in the same place…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not arguing about the work…

Mr. Bob Davis stated so it would have no implications.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my issue is not the work.  I understand the work has to be done.

Mr. Theron Harvey stated Director of Club Operations.  I’m a golf professional so I can speak a little bit to how the range would be set up.  The ball is not going to fly, necessarily 400 yards in the air.  It’s going to fly maybe 280, 290, 300 and then roll.  
Mr. Jim Creighton asked how about the 17 that went over 400 yards, address those?  Tell us how far those balls were up in the air before they landed at 400?  We’re they in the air 350?

Mr. Harvey responded some of those elite players, yes, they’re in the air maybe slightly over 300 yards, 310, 320…

Mr. Jim Creighton asked and they rolled 90 yards?

Mr. Harvey responded yes, absolutely.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s the average drive on the PGA Tour?

Mr. Harvey responded probably 290.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s about right, 280.  So, if that’s the average drive on the PGA why 340?

Mr. Harvey responded I can speak to our current situation.  So we have an uphill, downhill situation when we tour the golf course.  You got to see that.  We have a bit of a safety issue as with the yardage.  So, if we have people on both tees, it’s a bit of a safety issue.  With this new driving range, the way it would be set up we could have people on both tees hitting balls and the way it would be sloped it wouldn’t be a safety issue and we would be able to accommodate our members.  We’re not looking for the elite tour player necessarily.  We may have them but we could definitely accommodate our members and our guests and it wouldn’t be a safety issues.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you have both sides sloping up to the tees on each side?

Mr. Harvey responded the range isn’t set up in the same spot every day because of turf issues: divots and wear and tear, that’s going to move around on the big side here on the left…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s just backwards and forwards you’re moving them.

Mr. Harvey responded side to side and backwards and forwards, yes.

Mr. Kessler stated but that’s another 40 yards.  That’s 20 yards on each side.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what are your current plans for the current driving range?

Mr. Harvey responded that’s a good question.  We discussed some plantings and maybe a little short game area so players could work on their game from 10, 20, 30 yards, still get the nice view that we have but make it more of a short game.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so when there was discussion about whether there’s no other alternative but to have two facing each other or you need to rest for turf management for being able to handle and maintain the tees, why couldn’t you keep that current practice range that that range out there and when you need to close off or rest portions of the new range, use that or use them simultaneously for those that can handle or just want to use irons and have your people with woods on the other?  I don’t see why you have to have in such a limited location, not like the ones provided, the four or five examples they had all the room in the world to do whatever they wanted and they did what they did.  We don’t have that situation here.

Mr. Harvey responded so, we’re a top 100 golf course in Golf Digest and not that we’re – we’re here for our membership which is mainly local and some nationals but in order for us to really be an elite club we really need that tee.  It provides an intimate kind of relationship with the instructor and the teacher if we were to attract really good players.  They need targets and sight lines that are flatter.  This new range has the sight lines and the target greens coming from that opposite end like an Adam Scott let’s say, who could potentially be a member of ours if he was taking private instruction from our golf instructors at that far end.  He could be there by himself not being bothered by other members or guests.  He could have that experience from the back tee, have that flat sight lines to those target greens and it adds another element that we really need to have if we’re going to maintain the top 100 experience that we do have.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, but another alternative would be to give him that exact experience, if he could have the whole range to himself and your other members could use the current facility, right?

Mr. Bob Davis responded maybe there’s a point that’s being missed.  Again, even if that second tee were removed and we’re just talking about a grassed area that people are hitting from, even if that were removed it would still be a grassed area. The same work would still be done in…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated no I don’t think you’re right.  I think that’s what you’re proposing but I think that our experts were saying that if it were shorter, if they were able to move it a bit and get rid of – eliminate that second tee, it may be able to mitigate some of the major issues.  

Mr. Bob Davis responded that’s just not true.

Mr. Harvey stated we actually have to abandon the situation we have to now – we’re lucky that someone hasn’t been hurt to this point…

Mr. Bob Davis stated if you move it closer, the area that we’re talking about first of all is still the landing area for balls.  People are still going to be hitting balls that far.  You can’t have a driving range where people are hitting balls into the woods.  The removal of the tee or the moving of the tee forward has nothing to do with the disturbance of that area and if you move it forward you’re going to exacerbate the very safety issue that you’re talking about.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated but I disagree, what you’re saying is that at least 40 yards of that secondary is a maintenance area because you need to move the tee forward, back or whatever.  If you didn’t have to move anything forward, back or whatever you have at least 40 yards that you felt were safe enough that no ball would ever land there.  Therefore, that’s 40 yards that don’t have to be touched.

Mr. Harvey stated the physicality of the players and the ball and the shafts and the heads and the equipment, they keep changing, they’re going to keep getting better and better and right now…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so 350 may not be enough for the future.

Mr. Harvey responded yes, I’m a member of Titleist Staff and I’ll tell you they keep pushing the R&A and the USGA and the PGA.  They keep pushing the limits of the rules with the balls and heads and the shafts.  We can really only do this once and we want to do it right and to the longest and to accommodate what we think and where the game is going in the future.

Mr. Bob Davis stated and again, the work is going to be done anyway.  I think, please don’t lose sight of the fact of the value of these wetlands which Mr. Marino can speak to which is an important aspect.  Most of this wetland was created by the drainage from the golf course.  It’s only been existing since the ‘90s.  We’re going to create a wetland with a far greater function in terms of wetland function biodiversity and otherwise by adding 16,000 square feet of wetland to the other pond.  It’s a major – and of course we won’t do that if we can’t do this but again, the important thing is the only difference we’re talking about is people standing in that area hitting golf balls.  It’s still going to be improved.  It has to be or otherwise you’re going to have so many balls going into the woods.  It defeats the purpose of a driving range.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked will we be able to see a plan that shows us that?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just a point of information; while it’s not a top 100 club, we do hit the balls into the woods at Hollowbrook.  It’s not unheard of, maybe it’s not right for a top 100 club but it does occur.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I don’t know that a lot of pros are playing there and people that’s not going to be an acceptable situation to.  But again, please focus also, and Mr. Marino can speak to this if you wish, on the actual function of those wetlands that are being replaced and the value that we’re adding by the mitigation work that we’re doing on the other wetlands.  It’s going to be cleared anyway.  The ball’s going to go there anyway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m getting to get this feeling that somehow we clearly are not going to resolve this, this evening.  This is a new public hearing.  We did plan to adjourn it.  I don’t know how to manage this in a sense.  I’m not a golfer so I’m not particularly persuaded one way or another.  I am a fairly logical person.  If you can show me what you need to show me and you can deal with some of the conditions or the concerns about sensitive areas, maybe I can help make the kind of decision that would be beneficial.  Other than that, it’s like a tossup for me.  I don’t know why you have to have – personally, I kind of initially felt like; why does this tee has to be so long?  Then, I’m hearing from some of you; well, you really need to do this so you can remain a top flight, very competitive golf course…

Mr. Bob Davis stated it’s beyond that, it’s because you have to maintain the divots and things like that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if you don’t golf, that doesn’t mean anything to me.

Mr. Bob Davis stated and I don’t either, so we’re in the same place.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m just being very honest.  I’m trying to be candid.  I don’t know.  I don’t golf.  I don’t think I’ll ever golf so I really want to make a good decision and I am concerned about some of the issues that Mr. Buckhout pointed out.  I do recognize that you’ve got an issue too that you want to get out there and be competitive…

Mr. Bob Davis stated and he was referring to the older plan too.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so, again, maybe – I don’t know what staff wants to get involved with that kind of discussion but maybe there can be a small group of you who can just fight it out until you come to some decision about how long it needs to be, whether we’re going to have a 400 plus, 350 plus.

Mr. Bob Davis stated it’s 335 and Hollowbrook is 300 by the way, Mr. Mastromonaco designed it.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I’ve gone back-and-forth with Mr. Mastromonaco about shortening the tee range.  My position is that, that secondary tee area right now, it’s not even shown on this plan.  It’s not really practical to reach that area if you have golfers hitting balls from that first tee box down south to the bottom left of the screen.  How are you going to access the upper tee box to have dual use?  There’s a two on one slope that’s shown and there’s not general path to tee areas.  My position is it really should just be left as lawn and possibly reduced in size if you give up 20 yards or so and still get 300 or 310 yards.  It’ll bring disturbance out of the buffer and allow us to maintain a little bit more of that wetland north of the proposed regarding area.

Mr. Bob Davis stated my understanding is it would be, and Mr. Mastromonaco and Mr. Marino maybe can speak to that, my understanding is the disturbance would be almost exactly the same as Fazio pointed out in its letter that you’re still going to have balls going there.  If you move it in closer, as people have suggested, Mr. Mastromonaco has pointed out that it’s probably going, because of the topography, will probably as Mr. Coleman originally suggested there would have been a 30-foot retaining wall.  You don’t want a 30-foot retaining wall on a golf course either.  Believe us, we have studied this extremely carefully.  We can talk more to staff about it but we have studied it extremely carefully and it really, in essence, defeats the project because we also need that tee for additional capacity.  We have probably twice as much capacity here as in practical terms as we would on our existing driving range and we can’t make the other one, for a number of reasons, we can’t make the other tee on the other side any bigger to accommodate up to 13 more golfers at the same time.  But, when we’re talking about making it lawn area, I think we can demonstrate that there’s no functional difference between doing that and just having golfers be able to hit from there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what I wanted to say while the golf pro or manager was up there, sir, were you saying that the somewhat flatness of the proposed new range working both ways is key as opposed to the existing range that we saw when we were at the site visit which is basically downhill with golfers, with carts, and whatever; walking through the bottom.  I believe there was a parking lot.  so, it’s a safety issue there so what you were telling us that, that’s important for your golfers, your membership to use this new type setup which is flatter as opposed and also the safety aspect of the existing range?  You would not be using the existing range or you would only be using it sparingly with only certain clubs?
Mr. Harvey stated inaudible…..
Mr. Robert Foley stated I thought that was key from what he was saying.

Mr. Bob Davis the other thing about moving the tee area too when we looked at it, when Mr. Coleman first suggested that possibility and again, people make these suggestions but they’re not actually looking at an alternate plan, it also moves it closer to the existing golf course and one of the holes on that, which creates a safety issue for the existing course not only for the people on the driving range.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that I’m not clear on; this here, that says 20-foot screened fence?  Is that correct?  So, there’s a 20-foot high screen behind that tee box?  Is that necessary?  It gives the impression that balls are going to be pinging off it.  Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because that’s part of the confusion.  If I look at a 20-foot screen I’m thinking balls are going to be hitting the screen and therefore that tee box isn’t practical.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded the fence is back there because, in the event, maybe one or two – the balls that they’re playing with are $3.00 each so you don’t want those balls to be going back into the wetland.  It’s really – I don’t know why you would care, anybody would care that we want to put a fence there if we feel it’s necessary to keep the balls from running into the wetland.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but why does it need to be 20 feet high?

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked what happens if you also shoot in that direction.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded that fence is gradually getting smaller as we get out towards…

Mr. Jim Creighton asked which players is the fence for?  Is that 20-foot screened fence for the people on the 509 tees or for the other side?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, it’s from the far back to use it.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but you just said that balls, at best, are going to be bouncing onto those tees…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded Steve, I know what you’re getting at.  What nobody’s explaining to you is that this driving range will be managed like valet parking.  They’re not going to send people over here and people over here.  If they’re long hitters they’re going to be at the large tees but there’s not going to be anybody at the other end.  If there’s a long hitter on the far end, there’s to be no one on the other end.  It’s a managed place.  It’s not like a public driving range where people just line up anywhere and start hitting balls at each other, no, that’s not what’s going on here.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you saying so basically what, some large percentage of the time only one set of tees is going to be used?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked that’s what you’re saying.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded if you go to – I’ve played there a dozen times and you go to driving ranges and it’s like 5 people there, there’s 6 people there.

Mr. Bob Davis stated they have tournaments and whatever the major events are they exceed capacity that they could have on the one tee.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated when you have an outing, people that are not very good golfers.  They’re not hitting 335 yards they can use both sets of tees.  That will give them 12 and 33, they can have 45 different stations for an outing which would be great.  For the very few outings at Hudson National Golf Course, I think this is just one of the reasons why they want to hit both ways.  The key though is it needs to be 335 yards whether there’s a tee box over there or one over here.  It just needs to be 335 yards and I think you had enough testimony from Fazio’s letter and in your own experience you know Hollowbrook…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s great to have all these numbers in the letter.  I grew up in a time where you cite your sources when you put these things in.  You say a thousand drives: a thousand out of how many, 200,000?  I mean honestly, think about many drives are hit…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Hollowbrook is 300 yards.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Hollowbrook is 300 yards from the stone wall.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well it’s 300 yards long, now, what happens to the balls – you’ve got a great golfer, what happens to the golf balls after they go 300 yards, where do they go?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded they go into the woods or they go into the 9th hole.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked and how does the machine collect them?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated not on the 9th hole, it doesn’t.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so financially…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I pick them up at the 9th hole and I put them in my cart.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s not financially Jim.  I know you’re going to say – it’s a matter of training.  When a golfer goes out to a driving range, he’s doing training.  When he sees his ball, he sees where it lands; it goes this way or goes that way.  The ball is going this way or that way…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I agree but I’m just struggling with the words ‘no alternative’ because I’m seeing at least a half a dozen different alternatives.

Mr. Bob Davis stated not practical.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I see half a dozen practical alternatives. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’re going to have to really at this point – we have to refer this back.  There’s going to have – somebody’s got to talk?  Okay.

Ms. Kim Fleming stated my name is Kim Fleming.  I live on Hollis Lane.  Mr. Petek had actually mentioned our house when he was speaking earlier.  We live at the very end of Hollis Lane.  We have a big property; it’s 18 acres and there’s a very old house on the property.  It originates back to the 1750s so it’s been there a long time.  It’s withstood a lot of extreme weather, whatever.  There is a very steep slope in the front of our yard that goes past Con Ed and up to the golf course.  What concerns me mostly is the drainage and I was just wondering if someone, since there seems to be a lot of experts here tonight, if someone could explain to me what will be done to ensure that the runoff and drainage that’s coming down that hill and into the stream on my property isn’t going to get worse because I’m concerned, as we remove trees, as we are altering wetlands.  Water moves with velocity, when we have storms, when we have hurricanes the velocity of water that comes down that hill can be tremendous.  We’ve replaced our driveway.  Once, it washed away we had to have two truckloads of fill come in just to replace that.  We had to install two 16-inch PVC pipes to help control the water and move it away from our house.  Our house is about 100 feet from the stream and when that kicks in it really does create a huge amount of flow and water which continues to go down from my property to the roads below, Woody Brook Lane and so on.  In addition to our stream there are other little streams that go all throughout Hollis Lane and I’d like to know if these were looked that and if it’s been taken into consideration.  How will additional runoff, if this does happen, be controlled?
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, I think that’s a very good question and I suppose somebody should be able to…

Ms. Kim Fleming stated it’s my number one concern.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t blame you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you live at the top of Hollis?

Ms. Kim Fleming responded yes.  I’m the very last house.  My property borders the road and of course the right-of-way, that’s the Croton trail then it goes along the power lines and over to the Arboretum and down it abuts a property on Woody Brook.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’re a little distance from Mrs. Kinney?

Ms. Kim Fleming responded yes, she’s my neighbor.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you look at the original submission back in January, the cover letter, there’s an aerial photograph where you can see the relationship of the end of Hollis Lane to the golf driving range, because it doesn’t really show up on the site plan.  I think it’s sort of back there past the Con Ed power line easement and the golf and that.

Ms. Kim Fleming stated I don’t know if in your site walks this was taken into consideration; these streams were looked at but on a normal day it doesn’t look like anything but if we have anything like a couple inches of water, it really does kick off a lot of water, a lot of drainage, a lot of erosion and we just want to make sure it’s not going to get any worse. We seemed to have put in precautions to help control it and it works.  We’ve had some professionals come in to help control these stream waters but I’m just very nervous about this.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I can understand.  What would be your suggestion here at this point?  Should we have the applicant look at it?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes, I would have Ralph speak to this in a little more depth but generally when we look at these SWPPPs, we look at these abatement policies for these storm water runoffs, the ultimate goal is to not increase any runoff as far as volume and/or velocity discharging the site.  We try to restore, after development to pre-existing conditions.  As you all know, when you remove trees you start to grade, you’re taking up absorption capabilities, you’re increasing runoff.  There was a preliminary SWPPP prepared that was partially reviewed.  We need to now fully vet and design and approve and review the storm water report but if Ralph in the audience I think he can step up to the microphone just to expand upon it a little bit.

Ms. Kim Fleming stated one other thing to mention is all behind Hollis Lane also are the Con Edison power lines and they have severely cut back those trees over the past few years.  Over the summer they go through and they really prune them back which is also caused the water volume to increase in the past few years.  This additional clearing just really makes me nervous so I just want to know that this has all been taken into consideration.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated a SWPPP is a storm water prevention plan.  In that plan, the most important part of it is that we make sure that there is no additional water that runs off any site.  Now, because this is over a certain threshold size we have to do a pretty comprehensive final plan.  Mike will review it.  I’m sure he’s reviewed these before, many times.  There will be no additional peak flow running from this site but frankly, as an engineer, I didn’t even have to do that calculation to let you know that when you take down the woods and you put this type of turf back, when you remove the rock outcroppings and you put turf on top of them where now water can infiltrate, I don’t have to do a calculation.  I can tell you there’s going to be no additional runoff but we’ll do that calculation anyway.  If we were putting a shopping center here there’d be a whole different story but we’re replacing green with green so we’re pretty confident that there’s not going to be any problems with flooding downstream.  I will specifically look at, when I complete the SWPPP and all the calculations, I’ll specifically look at that issue and specifically address it.  Our calculations already go way beyond the golf course.  It doesn’t stop right there at the end.  We go down the road, down the stream which we’re actually required to do by the state.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well clearly Ralph, that’s a consideration for several people, the gentleman here, this lady here, Ms. Kinney who wrote a letter to the board so it would be helpful if you could, not only do that, but make sure that you touch so that they understand what your findings are.
Mr. Jim Creighton asked Ralph, when you’re dealing with the calculations you said ‘replacing green with green’ are there different calculations if something is – if you’re looking at grass is it just impervious versus anything green or is it impervious versus grass versus trees and woods?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded there’s gradations.  There’s good woods.  There’s bad woods.  There’s things like that.  You have to make a judgment.  There’s some guidelines on that but first we determine whether that’s good woods or bad woods or poor woods or something like that.  We’d have to make that comparison.  We did the drainage report on the entire Hudson National Golf Course using the same principles and I was there during rainstorms and I thought that the modeling that we did using those parameters was very accurate and I was – so I’m pretty confident we’re not going to have a problem.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to adjourn this.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this until October.

Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you very much.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good night.


*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS: 

PB 4-14  a. Application of Mongoose Inc. for the property of Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Asset Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc., for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 6 lot subdivision (5 building lots and 1 open space parcel) of a 128.8 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated July 20, 2015.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this matter just tonight, is going to be adjourned to October per the request of the applicant.
Mr. Robert Foley asked we’re talking about Mongoose correct?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s adjourn and make a motion?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, we just got this in tonight.  Their request was to adjourn it to October…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there’s no adjournment.  It’s not a public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, then we’ll refer it back.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 4-15      b.
Application of MJD Contracting for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 2 lot minor subdivision of an approximately 2 acre parcel of property located at 16 Hillcrest Avenue, near Grexa Place, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Sketch Integrated Plot Plan, Tree Plan and Details and Profiles” prepared by John Karell, Jr., P.E. latest revision dated July 24, 2015.

Ms. Lisa Cozzi stated good evening everyone.  Lisa Cozzi with MJD Contracting.  We had our site inspection on Sunday.  Everything went well, the only item that we discussed was the town arborist had pointed out that he wanted to preserve tree number 90 and it is in a septic area so right now we’re in discussions with our engineer, Mr. Karell and we should have something shortly, hopefully we can just maybe move the septic area slightly to preserve that tree.  We should have that answer by next week.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated there was a site visit, I was there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Tom gets the award.  I won’t say what I’m going to give the other six of you but Tom gets the award.  It was an intimate site inspection.  
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated what the applicant said is basically what we discussed.  The other lot is fine.  It’s just this one tree that if we could avoid harming it, it would be benefit.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the arborist still has to raise the issue about during construction – it’s something I’d like to get into the Resolution once we get to that stage, to protect the trees that are there.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’ll be an erosion, sedimentation control plan issued with the Building Permits and we can be very proactive as far as enforcing that making sure the proper tree protection and silt fencing is installed prior to construction.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing for our October 6th meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Lisa Cozzi stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you next month. 

PB 5-15    c.
Application of Teatown Lake Reservation Inc. for renewal of a Special Permit for a Private Nature Preserve to conduct a summer camp program and a weekday public program for property located on the north side of Teatown Road, approximately 3,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Special Permit Map, Cliffdale Farm North” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated July 23, 2010. (see prior PB 10-10)

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing on October 6th for this application.
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as per the code, this was referred to several agencies.  I haven’t heard from some but the ones I have heard from, there have been no issues with the site the past 5 years.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you haven’t heard from anybody?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no negative comments from anybody.

With all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair it’s 9:28, I move that we adjourn.


*



*
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY, October 6, 2015
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